
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
Area Planning Subcommittee West 
Wednesday, 25th February, 2009 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber  
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email:  gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
Tel:  01992 564470 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs P Brooks (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, J Collier, 
Mrs A Cooper, J Demetriou, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, 
Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and Mrs E Webster 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public 
gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer on 01992 564249. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 25 February 2009 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, as attached. 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 13 - 26) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule. 
 
Background Papers:   
 
(i)   Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 25 February 2009 
 

3 

representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule. 
 
(ii)   Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 25 February 2009 
 

4 

 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: 4 February 2009
   

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping 

Time: 7.30 - 8.10 pm 

Members
Present:

J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs P Brooks (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, 
Mrs A Cooper, Mrs M Sartin and Mrs P Smith 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: J Collier, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and 
Mrs E Webster 

Officers
Present:

J Shingler (Senior Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant) and D Clifton (Principal Housing Officer [IT]) 

16. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 

17. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. 

18. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 14 January 
2009 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P Smith 
declared a personal interest in the following application by virtue of being a member 
of Epping Upland Parish Council, but not a member of the Parish Council Planning 
Committee. However the Councillor also declared a prejudicial interest in that she 
occupied a neighbouring property to the site in question and she had been consulted 
regarding the proposed development. She indicated that she would leave the 
meeting during the consideration and voting thereon: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Area Planning Subcommittee West  4 February 2009 

2

• EPF/2372/08 Sumners Farm, Epping Road, Epping Upland, Epping CM16 
6PX 

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Cooper 
declared a personal interest in the following application by virtue of being a member 
of the Parish Council. The Councillor declared that her interest was not prejudicial 
and indicated that she would remain in the meeting during the consideration and 
voting thereon: 

• EPF/2200/08 Spinney Nursery, Hoe Lane, Nazeing, Essex EN9 2RJ 

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 

21. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED: 

 That, Planning applications numbered 1 - 3 be determined as set out in the 
annex to these minutes. 

22. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last 
meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the 
Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2372/08

SITE ADDRESS: Sumners Farm 
Epping Road 
Epping Upland 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 6PX 

PARISH: Epping Upland 

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of agricultural building to pelleting of 
polyethylene piping use with associated parking space. 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The premises shall be used solely for pelleting of polyethylene piping as described 
in the application and for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class B 
of the Schedule to the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in 
any provision equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-
enacting that Order. 

3 The change of use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers, staff, or for 
deliveries outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 on Mondays to Fridays, and not at all 
on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank/Public holidays. 

4 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff and visitors vehicles. 

5 There shall be no open storage or external working other than loading/unloading in 
connection with the use hereby approved. 

Minute Item 21

Page 3Page 9



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2200/08

SITE ADDRESS: Spinney Nursery 
Hoe Lane 
Nazeing
Essex 
EN9 2RJ 

PARISH: Nazeing

WARD: Lower Nazeing 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Removal of agricultural occupancy condition on EPF/938/73  

DECISION: Granted Permission 

CONDITIONS

NONE 

Page 4Page 10



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2257/08

SITE ADDRESS: Broadley Garage 
Epping Road 
Roydon
Harlow
Essex 
EN9 2DH 

PARISH: Roydon

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension to MOT workshop.  

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building and samples shall be submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. 

3 All surface water within the curtilage of the site that may be polluted, should pass 
through an interceptor tank to remove any oil, petrol or other pollutants, before 
discharging to the surface water system. The installation of such a system, including 
an adequate impermeable surface, should be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of work and should be installed and 
maintained as agreed. 

Page 5Page 11



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’ 

25 February 2009 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 

RECOMMENDATION 
PAGE

1. EPF/2414/08 Land fronting Brambles, Epping 
Road, Nazeing 

REFUSE 15 

2. EPF/0067/09 Orchard Cottage, Epping Road, 
Roydon 

GRANT 22 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2414/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land fronting 

Brambles  
Epping Road  
Nazeing 
Essex 
EN9 2DH 
 

PARISH: Roydon 
 

WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Derick Dale 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of two detached dwellings with associated garaging. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the proposal does not 
constitute appropriate development in the Green Belt. Therefore the proposal is at 
odds with the objectives of the Metropolitan Green Belt. Furthermore, the special 
circumstances submitted with the application are not considered sufficient to 
outweigh the harm to the Metropolitan Green Belt. As such the proposed 
development fails to comply with PPG2 and policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan 
and Alterations. 
 

2 The proposed development is not situated in a location that is readily accessible by 
existing and committed sustainable means of transport, nor is it well served by local 
facilities. As such the proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policies CP1, 
CP3, CP7 and ST1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

3 The proposed development, due to the scale and design of the dwellings and 
garage buildings, would detrimentally impact on the character and appearance of 
the conservation area and the locality, contrary to policies CP2, DBE4, HC6 and 
HC7 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Penny Smith 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the erection of two dwellings within the front garden area of Brambles, 
Epping Road. The dwellings would have footprints of some 117 sq. m. with plot 1 having a 

Page 15



detached double garage and plot 2 having a linked detached double garage. The two dwellings, 
along with the existing property known as Brambles, would be served by the existing vehicle 
access, although it is proposed to enlarge this to a width of 4.8m. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Large detached chalet bungalow located to the rear of the other properties in this section of 
Epping Road. The existing dwelling has a very large front and side garden and sits contrary to the 
building line of the surrounding area. The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the 
Nazeing and South Roydon Conservation area. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPR/0013/53 - Bungalow – approved/conditions 25/03/53 
EPR/0080/53 - Bungalow – approved 20/06/53 
EPF/0459/76 - Erection of ground floor extension and alterations and the construction of dormer 
windows – approved/conditions 21/06/76 
EPF/1342/78 - Outline application for dwelling – refused 13/11/78 (appeal dismissed 23/04/79) 
EPF/0685/83 - Use of former packing shed as an exercise room, sauna and beauty treatment 
room – refused 25/07/83 
EPF/1060/91 - Occupation of dwelling without compliance with agricultural occupancy condition – 
refused 01/11/91 (appeal dismissed 25/06/92) 
EPF/0845/93 - Erection of timber store shed – approved 09/11/93 
CLD/EPF/0635/03 - Certificate of Lawfulness for existing use of occupation of dwelling without 
compliance with agricultural occupancy condition – approved/conditions 25/04/03 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 – New development 
CP7 – Urban form and quality 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
HC6 – Character, appearance and setting of conservation areas 
HC7 – Development within conservation areas 
H2A – Previously developed land 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL1 – Rural landscape 
LL2 – Inappropriate rural development 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention 
LL11 – Landscaping schemes 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
U2A – Development in Flood Risk Areas 
U2B – Flood Risk Assessment zones 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 

Page 16



The main issues here relate to the impact on the Green Belt, the general location of the 
development, amenity considerations, the design of the properties, the impact on the conservation 
area, landscaping considerations, and with regards to highway safety and vehicle parking. 
 
Green Belt 
 
The application site is situated within the Metropolitan Green Belt. Local Plan policy GB2A, which 
reflects the guidance given in PPG2, states that the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt 
will not be granted unless it is: 

(i) for the purposes of agriculture, horticulture, or forestry; 
(ii) for the purposes of outdoor participatory sport and recreation or associated essential 

small-scale buildings; 
(iii) for the purposes of a cemetery; 
(iv) for other uses which preserve the openness of the Green Belt and which do not conflict 

with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt; 
(v) a dwelling for an agricultural, horticultural or forestry worker; 
(vi) a replacement for an existing dwelling; 
(vii) a limited extension to an existing dwelling. 

 
This application is for two residential properties, but does not propose these for agricultural, 
horticultural or forestry worker dwellings. As such the proposed development would be 
inappropriate development which, by definition, is harmful to the Green Belt. Due to this, it has to 
be assessed as to whether there are very special circumstances in this instance that are sufficient 
to outweigh this harm. The special circumstances put forward by the applicant are that there are 
potential proposals to develop the area of Green Belt land to the northeast of the site and as 
planning permission was granted in 2008 for two new dwellings at Silcocks Farm, which is located 
some 135m from the application site. 
 
The potential development to the northeast of the application site has arisen from the East of 
England Plan which promotes a small scale level of additional housing to the south and west of 
Harlow to form part of its urban extension, and also states that the Green Belt boundaries should 
be redrawn to cater for this. Epping Forest District Council opposed the potential Harlow 
expansion in this direction and at present there have been no planning applications submitted for 
such a development. Any application that is received will be dealt with under current policies and 
would most likely be resisted due to the impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt. Notwithstanding 
this, it is not considered that a speculative development close to the application site should set a 
precedent for an inappropriate development such as that proposed in this location. 
 
The recently approved planning application for two new dwellings at Silcocks Farm was 
considered acceptable on the strength of its special circumstances, which related to the history of 
the site. The two dwellings at Silcocks Farm were originally approved in the mid 1980s, and were 
constantly reapplied for. Due to this it was not considered reasonable for the Council to refuse 
permission in 2008 after 25 years of considering the proposal acceptable. In this instance it was 
clearly identified that the proposed development was contrary to Green Belt policy, however it had 
very special circumstances to overcome this. The very special circumstances for the Silcocks 
Farm site cannot be transferred and argued for this application site, and it is not considered that 
the Silcocks Farm development sets a precedent for this inappropriate development. 
 
Planning permission was previously refused on this site for a single dwelling in 1978 on Green Belt 
grounds and as it “would result in the consolidation of the existing sporadic development remote 
from the centre of population/village centre”. Whilst the planning policies have changed several 
times since this date, the principle of development in the Green Belt has been little altered and it is 
still considered that new dwellings are inappropriate unless very special circumstances can be 
shown. 
 

Page 17



The application site is located within the existing built up area of Broadley Common, within an area 
of residential curtilage (considered as Previously Developed Land under PPS3). Whilst the 
development of previously developed land is favoured over ‘green field’ sites, this does not apply 
irrespective of the nature or designation of the site. As such the intrinsic harm to the Green Belt 
would far outweigh the benefit of the use of this previously developed site. 
 
The existing dwelling known as Brambles was originally erected as an agricultural workers 
dwelling, and in 2003 had a certificate of lawful use given for 10 years continued occupation 
without complying with the agricultural tie. Although there are two further dwellings to the 
southeast and residential properties opposite the site, this site is located on the very edge of this 
ribbon development and is in a very rural location. The immediate neighbouring property to the 
southeast is a large glasshouse development, which is currently detached from the main 
residential area of Broadley Common due to the application site. The proposed dwellings would 
infill this section and, as previously stated, would consolidate the existing sporadic development in 
this rural edge of the ribbon development. This opinion was previous supported by the Planning 
Inspectorate and it is not felt that the situation has changed since this time. As such this proposal 
would not constitute a ‘limited infill’ to an existing village.  In any case for infilling to be acceptable 
the location would have needed to have been identified in the Local Plan as suitable for infilling, 
and this is not the case. 
 
Planning permission was refused in 2008 for a new dwelling at Barn Cottage, Epping Road, which 
is the closest residential property to the southeast of the application site, and for one to the side of 
Clifton Lodge, Epping Road, which is to the northwest of Broadley Common. Both these schemes 
were refused on Green Belt grounds and it is not considered that there are very special 
circumstances relating to this site either.  The proposal also constitutes inappropriate development 
that is not only by definition, harmful to the Green Belt, but is also clearly physically harmful, 
significantly reducing the openness of the Green Belt.  As there are no sufficient very special 
circumstances to outweigh the harm from this, the development fails to comply with national 
guidance and Local Planning policies and should therefore be refused. 
 
Location 
 
Further to the proposal constituting inappropriate development in the Green Belt, the Planning 
Inspector also concluded in the 1978 appeal that “a new house on this site would, by adding to the 
established ribbon of dwellings, create pressure for building up of other vacant land hereabouts, 
the effect of which, cumulatively, would be significantly adverse to the existing character of the 
area and which would prejudice the desirable planning objective of directing new housing to places 
with adequate community facilities”. Whilst at this time sustainable development was not at the 
fore in planning terms, the principle of this statement is that the site is poorly located for additional 
development. 
 
Under the Local Plan core policies and policy ST1, new development in rural areas should be in 
“locations with access to regular public transport services and containing basic shops and other 
facilities” and should ‘avoid further commuting, especially where it is dependent upon private car 
use’. The application site is located within a small rural settlement that is not well served by public 
transport and does not have sufficient shops or other facilities to meet day to day requirements. As 
such any future occupiers of the proposed dwellings would make the majority of trips by car and 
would likely result in increased commuting to large urban settlements for employment purposes, 
which is contrary to Local Plan policies. 
 
Amenity 
 
The proposed dwellings would have private amenity spaces to the rear, of 416 sq. m. and 568 sq. 
m. Both these gardens would meet the requirements of DBE8 and the Essex Design Guide, and 
would not be significantly overlooked by neighbouring properties. 

Page 18



 
The proposed dwellings would be sufficient distance from the surrounding residential properties 
and would not result in a detrimental loss of light, privacy or visual amenity. The pair of houses 
have been designed so as not to impact on the future occupiers of the properties, nor would they 
impact on the existing property known as Brambles. 
 
Design and impact on conservation area 
 
The application site is located within the Nazeing and South Roydon Conservation Area. Currently 
the site consists of the large open front garden to Brambles and contains a front hedge, several 
trees and other vegetation bordering the site. It is considered that this visual gap and area of open 
landscape contributes to the important landscape features that are a fundamental part of the 
character and appearance of this conservation area. As such the infilling of this area, between the 
ribbon development of Broadley Common and the somewhat unsightly glasshouses to the east of 
the site, would materially impact on the character of the conservation area and would therefore be 
unacceptable. 

 
It is also considered that the scale, massing and height of the proposed dwellings would further 
erode the open landscape character of this area. The design of the dwellings in general, and the 
detached garages in particular with the bell towers on top, are inappropriate to the built character 
of this area. As such the proposed development would exacerbate the erosion of the small scale 
rural qualities of this conservation area. 
 
Landscaping 
 
There are some trees located on site, a hedge forming the boundary fronting Epping Road, and a 
large vegetated belt along the eastern boundary. It is proposed to remove the existing vegetation 
and plant new shrubs along the northern and eastern boundaries in front of a 1.8m close boarded 
fence. None of the trees on site are covered by TPO’s, and the existing vegetation is of no 
particular merit. Whilst its replacement would be required, it would be preferable that as much of 
the existing vegetation as possible is retained, however the failure to do this would not constitute a 
reason for refusal. As such, subject to the submission of a landscaping condition, the proposed 
development would not be detrimental to Local Plan policies LL10 and LL11. 
 
Highway safety/parking 
 
The proposed dwellings, and the existing property known as Brambles, would be served by the 
existing vehicle crossover, which would be extended in width to 4.8m. The sight lines and usage of 
the access are acceptable and the enlargement of the vehicle access would not be unduly 
detrimental to highway safety. 
 
As previously stated, the application site is located in an unsustainable location not well served by 
public transport. As such three parking spaces are required for each property. Given that the 
proposed dwellings would each be served by a double garage, and have sufficient space within 
the front gardens for overspill parking and turning space, the proposal would comply with policies 
ST4 and ST6 of the Local Plan. 
 
Other consideration 
 
The application site is located within an EFDC Flood Risk Assessment zone and, given the size of 
the proposed works, this development would result in an increase in rainfall runoff. As such a 
Flood Risk Assessment would be required, which in this instance could be secured via condition. 
 
Conclusion: 
 

Page 19



In summary, the proposed dwellings would constitute inappropriate development within the Green 
Belt and have demonstrated insufficient very special circumstances to overcome the harm from 
this. Furthermore the design of the proposed dwellings would detrimentally impact on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area and would exacerbate the erosion of the rural 
qualities of the locality, and the proposal would be situated in an unsustainable location resulting in 
a reliance on commuting and car usage. As such this proposal is contrary to PPG2 and Local Plan 
policies CP1, CP2, CP3, CP7, GB2A, HC6, HC7, DBE4 and ST1 and is therefore recommended 
for refusal. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – No objection but require confirmation that the site is not within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt, that three houses using the same access is acceptable, and whether 
ECC Highways have any objections relating to sight lines onto Epping Road. 
 
THE MINSTRELS, EPPING ROAD – Concerned that the plot would be overcrowded, especially as 
it is in the conservation area. Also would prefer for the front lawn to remain as is and the existing 
trees to be retained. 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

64.6m

Little
Orchard

Silcocks

Th
Farm

Ashfields

Mead

Barn Cottage

Spring
House

Stanleigh

PO

Ridings

Brook

The Firs

Cottage

Cottages

1

2

Well

Rosemary

The Harrons

Tank

Dellars

Kennersbrook

The
 M

ins
tre

lsDerwent
Cottage

G
ra

ns
de

n

W
oo

dl
an

ds

Nursery

Co
ni

fe
rs

St
al

lio
n 

Lo
dg

e

Lo
ng

re
ac

h

Brambles

Evesdrop

The
Moorings

Lodge
Meadow

Lusaakas

North

Cott

Cott

Eastleigh
Jedsolme

Camelot

South

Rasa-Sayang

The Tudors

Broadlands

Station

Pumping

Fairlawn

Garage

Terrace

Rosewood Farm

Broadley

(PH)

The Black Swan

strey

mount

Pond

Pond

LB

Nursery

Common

Allotment

Recreation Ground

Gardens

Gardens
Allotment

Broadley

EPPING ROAD

C
O

M
M

O
N

 R
O

A
D

EPPIN
G

 R
O

A
D

Nursery

Nursery

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/2414/08 

Site Name: Land fronting Brambles, Epping 
Road, Nazeing, EN9 2DH 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 21



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0067/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Orchard Cottage 

Epping Road 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM19 5DA 
 

PARISH: Roydon 
 

WARD: Roydon 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Henry Simmons 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion of garage to ancillary accommodation and new 
single storey link to join house to ancillary building. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension/conversion 
shall match those of the existing building or as indicated on the submitted 
application forms and plans. 
 

3 The proposed ancillary accommodation shall only be used in connection with the 
existing dwelllinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the 
dwelling known as Orchard Cottage, Epping Road, Roydon. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the conversion of the existing garage and ancillary detached 
outbuilding to ancillary accommodation and to erect a single storey link building to join the 
detached building to the main dwelling. The proposal link would be 3.5m wide and 3.3m deep and 
would be predominantly glazed with a ridged tile roof to a maximum height of 3m. The garage 
conversion would involve the replacement of the existing garage door with a flush window but 
would involve no further external alterations. 
 

Page 22



Description of Site: 
 
Two storey detached dwelling located on the eastern side of Epping Road, Roydon. The 
application site is located on the edge of the built-up area of Roydon, within the Metropolitan 
Green Belt. To the north south and west are residential properties, with open fields to the east. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPR/0112/50 - Alterations to extensions – approved 10/05/50 
EPF/0164/92 - Erection of two storey extension, change of use of existing garage and erection of 
replacement garage – approved/conditions 21/05/92 
EPF/0594/99 - Erection of replacement dwelling – refused 04/10/99 (appeal dismissed 21/02/00) 
EPF/1750/99 - Two storey side extension, use of garage as domestic games room and erection of 
new double garage (previously approved - EPF/164/92) – approved/conditions 24/12/99 
EPF/0439/00 - Proposed replacement dwelling – refused 17/05/00 
EPF/0904/00 - Demolition of existing residential dwelling and erection of replacement house – 
approved/conditions 12/07/00 
EPF/1292/00 - Erection of detached triple garage – approved/conditions 15/05/01 
EPF/0325/03 - Demolition and replacement of existing two storey garage/games room – refused 
31/03/03 
EPF/1430/03 - Demolition and replacement single storey garage/games room (revised application) 
– approved/conditions 26/08/03 
EPF/0048/04 - Single storey side extension for boiler/utility room – approved/conditions 27/02/04 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB14A – Residential extensions 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
DBE10 – Residential extensions 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues here relate to the potential impact on the Green Belt, neighbouring properties, 
parking and highway considerations, and with regards to the design. 
 
Green Belt 
 
There is a fairly long history to the application site with both the main house and the detached 
garage (proposed to be converted) previously being replaced. The original property on the site had 
been extended a great amount and, due to this, the replacement property was only approved as it 
was of the same volume as that which it replaced. Due to this, permitted development rights Class 
A and B were removed from the dwelling. Planning permission was also granted for a replacement 
detached garage, which was slightly larger than the original but considered acceptable. It is this 
replacement detached garage that is proposed to be used for ancillary accommodation. 
 
The previous property was considered to have met its limits in terms of ‘limited extensions’ and as 
such extensions to the like-for-like (size wise) replacement house will generally be resisted. 
Notwithstanding this, chapter 5.62a of the Local Plan, which deals with residential extensions in 
the Green Belt, states that “when the maximum amount of floor space increase has been reached, 
further applications for extension will not be permitted except for minor extensions”. Due to this, 
a single storey side addition was added to the replacement property in 2004 to provide a 
boiler/utility room, which was considered a minor extension. Similarly, given that the proposed link 

Page 23



would be single storey, predominantly glazed, and would have a floor area of just 11.5 sq. m., it is 
considered that the proposed link building would also constitute a minor extension and as such 
would not be contrary to Local Plan policies GB2A and GB14A. 
 
The proposed conversion would change the use of the detached outbuilding from a garage, games 
room and store room to ancillary accommodation. The only physical alteration to the building, 
excluding the link addressed above, would be the removal of the garage door, insertion of a flush 
window and internal alterations, of which we have received no details. However, internal 
alterations would not require planning permission so details of these would not be required. Given 
the location/position of the outbuilding in relation to the main house, and the window placement, it 
is unlikely that this outbuilding would be used as a separate dwelling. Notwithstanding this, any 
planning approval should be conditioned to ensure that the ancillary accommodation is only used 
in connection with the main dwelling and is not sold off separately. 
 
The parish council have objected to the proposal in terms of overdevelopment, although they give 
no justification for this. As the scheme is primarily for the conversion of an existing building and the 
linked extension is of a very small scale, it is not felt that this proposal would result in an 
overdevelopment of this substantial site. 
 
Amenity consideration 
 
The only alterations that would occur from this development are the construction of a single storey 
link building, which would be wholly located between the existing house and outbuilding, and the 
insertion of a flush window replacing the garage doors. None of these aspects would detrimentally 
impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties, and as such this proposal complies with 
Local Plan policy DBE9. 
 
Parking 
 
The existing garage building under consideration here was approved in 2003 and had a condition 
stating that it had to be ‘retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with 
any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose’. The reason for this condition was to protect 
against the outbuilding being used separately from the house, which would have been contrary to 
Green Belt policies. As previously stated, a condition would be required on this application to 
ensure that the building is not used separately from the house. 
 
In terms of the provision of covered parking, there is a detached triple garage block to the 
southwest of the dwelling that meets the Essex County Council parking standards for off-street 
parking provision on a house of this size in a rural location. Also, if required, there is adequate 
space within the front garden for overflow/visitor parking. As such, the loss of this detached garage 
for vehicle parking would not be detrimental to policy ST6. 
 
Design 
 
The proposed link building would be predominantly glazed with a low ridged roof to match the 
existing house. It would be set back some 34m from the edge of the highway, and as such would 
not be particularly visible from the street scene. The link and alteration to the façade of the garage 
would not be detrimental to the overall character or appearance of the dwelling and would not 
detrimentally impact on the appearance of the Green Belt. As such this proposal would comply 
with policies DBE4 and DBE10 of the Local Plan. 
 

Page 24



Conclusion: 
 
The conversion of the garage and proposed link extension are considered minor extensions to this 
Green Belt property and would not detrimentally impact on the character or appearance of the 
existing dwelling, the street scene, or the Green Belt. The loss of the garage would not be 
detrimental to the overall level of off-street parking provision for the site and therefore, subject to 
conditions controlling the use of the proposed ancillary accommodation, this proposal complies 
with all relevant Local Plan policies and is recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Object:: overdevelopment. 
 
 
 

Page 25



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

68.6m

61.9m

66.8m

71.9m

73.5m

Regents

The Firs

Orchard Drive

Lodge

Kingsview

Elmbank

Kingsmead

Kingsmead

House

Pennistone

Mor

Restawhile

Chy-

Applewood Orchard Cottage

Woodlands

Cymru

East

Cornwood

Appleby

Oaklea

Alvand

Riding

100

Barford

a

Crossways

88

Threeways

1

hack

The Croft

Littlemore

White Cottage

Red Roofs

LOW HILL HOUSE

1

7

6

12

99

Thomazines

Deerhurst

The Pippins

Posts

Trac
k

Track

LB

LO
W

 H
IL

L 
R

O
A

D

WOODREDON CL

B
 1

81
B 

18
1

ngsmead Hill

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/0067/09 

Site Name: Orchard Cottage, Epping Road, 
Roydon 
CM19 5DA 

Page 26


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	4 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	Plans West Schedule 25-Feb-09


